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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

- The district now being nominated to the National Register constitutes a
rectangle bounded on.the west by a Tine 602 feet west of the southwest

corner of Section 22, T8N R15W; on the north by a 1ine 1815 feet north g{A:‘

“this corner; on the east by a 11ne 1320 feet east of this corner; and;
the south by Nebraska highway 10 (which lntersects with this corner).

The above district is ]ocated about a half mile south of the south ba
of the Platte River and encloses an area of about 80 acres - - or only
small fraction of the 100 square mile Fort Kearny Military Reservation, &+
as established in 1848.

~longer visible in this 10ca11ty was situated directly north of this

- district. This district is believed to circumscribe the sites of all
major structures erected at Fort Kearny between 1848 and 1871. Based on
extensive archival and archeological research, an enclosed map of this
district shows the approximate location of these structural sites. No
bu11d1ngs of the 1848-71 period - - nor even ruins of these former bu11d-
ings - - surV1ve today

The first structures erected at Fort Kearny were temporary buildings
erected in 1848 and included two sod stables, two Tiving quarters, and an
adobe warehouse. These structures were erected close to a four-acre,
rectangular parade ground. Log structures were built in subsequent years,
and the first frame buildings at the fort were erected in 1849-50: a
small hospital and a handsome two-story officers' quarters. Detailed

~architectural p1ans early photographs,and relatively undisturbed .
archeological remains still exist for this latter structure, revealing
a building highly similar in design to "01d Bedlam," built ca. 1849 at

Fort Laramie in Wyoming and still extant. It is believed that both
buildings were designed under the dlrectlon of Lt. Daniel P. Woodbury,

founder of Fort Kearny.

Between 1848 and 1871, some 30 to 35 buildings, excluding minor out-
buildings, were erected at Fort Kearny. The majority of these structures
were apparently frame structures. In addition, prompted by increased '
Indian hostilities in the v101n1ty, several earthwork fortifications were
erected in 1864 outside the fort bu11d1ng comp1ex ‘These earthworks,
including a TaFge rectangular fortification known as “"Fort Mitchel,'
were never used because Fort Kearny was never attacked. Over the past
century, a large portion of the remains of the fort building complex has
been obliterated through road building and farmming activities - -
including v1rtua11y all remains Tocated to the west of the parade grounds.
By the late 1870's, much of this building complex had been converted by
homesteaders into farm]and Fortunately, however, a 40-acre portion of
this complex has apparently never been placed under cultivation and
~includes a wealth of relatively undisturbed archeological. remains - - a
circumstance which enhances the overall s1gn1f1cance of Fort- Kearny and
its value as a site worthy of preservat1on '
R R .
In the 1920's the Fort Kearny Memorial Assoc1at10n adqunred ‘this 40 “acre

tract and offered it to the State of Nebraska. This offer was accepted
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in 1929 by the state legislature, and the tract became a state park, now
administered by the State Game and Parks Commission. - Until recently, the
lack of funds prevented development of the tract as a historic site.
Although faint traces of early foundations, paths, pits, and mounds (most
notably the Fort Mitchel earthwork outline) were still visible within this
tract, so much physical evidence of the fort had disappeared that a visitor
had difficulty visualizing the original appearance. But now this tract is
in the process of redevelopment. The 1864 Fort Mitchel fortification was

- reconstructed in 1962-63, a replica of the 1865 sod blacksmith-carpenter
shop was added in 1964-67, and finally a visitor center was built in 1967-68.
Further development 75 planned. Through a cooperative agreement with the
State Game and Parks Commission, extensive archeological and historical
investigations of Fort Kearny were conducted in 1960, 1961, and 1964 by the
Nebraska State Historical Society. ’
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Estwpllghed along the Oregon Trail by the U. S Army 1in 1848 and abandoned
in 1871, Fort Kearny remained in existence for on]y a short period of
time. Yet from 1849 to 1866, this military garrison stood as one of the
most important. outposts of c1v1112at10n on the American frontiér. “During
these seventeen years, no major battles were ‘waged in the immediate Fort
Kearny vicinity. Nor was Fort Kearny the largest military post in the
West dur1ng this period. Rather its significance derives from its stature
as a major hub of western transportation and communication during this
period. It stood as a gateway 1 to the hostile Great Plains and as a
launching platform for overland travel to the Pacific coast and intermed-
iate points. It was here that virtually all trails leading westward from
the Missouri River steamboat towns to the Pacific coast converged to form
a single superhighway - - including the routes westward from Independence,
Leavenworth, St. Joseph, Nebraska City, Omaha, and other more minor . v
routes. Dur1ng the 1849-66 period, the vast majority of overland freight-
ing and emigrant traffic destined for the Pacific Coast and intermediate
points - - including the gold fields of California, Colorado, Montana,
and Idaho - - converged at Fort Kearny. In contrast,only a fract1on of
this traffic passed through Independence, usually regarded as the eastern
terminus of the Oregon Trail. Al1 Pony Express traffic passed through
Fort Kearny during the brief existence of this dramatic postal enterprise
in 1960-61, and by 1865 stagecdaches operating out of Omaha, Atchison,
and other Missouri River towns were stopping at Fort Kearny on a daily
- basis. Fort Kearny also served as a key station along America's first
transcontinental telegraph 1ine, completed in 1861, and as an_ important
assembly point for numerous m111tany expeditions. durlng the Indian wars.
The fort also he]ped keep peace between the warr1ng Sioux and Pawnee
Indians in the vicinity. _

{ Primarily Fort Kearny's funct1on was to prov1de protect1on and supp11es
to trave]ers on the Oregon Trail. v

The establishment of Fort Kearny (or "New Fort Kearny") in 1848 constituted|
a relocation of short-1jved Camp Kearny (or "01d Fort Kearny") to a point

closer to the mainline of westward migration.

| Abandoned in 1848, Camp Kearny had been established in 1846 by Col. Stephan|
JMatts. Keanny\along the Missouri River on the present site of Nebraska City.
Sltuated a]ong the Platte River about 165 miles due west of Camp Kearny,
v e Contlnued
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Grange, Roger T., Jr., "Preliminary Report: Excavations at Fort Kearny,.
Nebraska," unpublished manuscript, Nebraska State H1stor1ca] Society,
Lincoln, 1960. '

Mantor, Lyle, "History of Fort Kearny," unpublished doctoral d1ssertat1on,
Un1vers1ty of Nebraska, Lincoln.

Mattes, Merrill J., The Great Platte River Road, Nebraska State
H1stor1ca1 Society, Lincoln, 1969.
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the Fort Kearny site was selected in September of 1847 by Lt. Daniel P.
Woodbury of the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers. Although Woodbury initially
referred to this new site as "Fort Childs," the site was officially named

| "Fort Kearny" in December of 1848. Under the direction of Woodbury, construc-

. tion at Fort Kearny began in 1848. The following year Woodbury also became '
involved in the rebuilding of Fort Laramie, located in present-day Wyoming
and acquired by the U. S. Army in 1849 - and thus the similarity of many
buildings at the two posts. Forts Kearny. and Laramie were the first of a
series of military posts established in-the mid- n1neteenth century to protect
the Oregon Trail.

The sudden increase in westward migration during and following the California
Gold Rush of 1849 enhanced Fort Kearny's importance and stimulated it's
accelerated growth. Fort Kearny's final wave of construction occurred in
1864-65 during a period of severe Indian depredations in the vicinity. There-
after the usefulness of the fort declined rapidly. By the end of 1865, the
principal Indian wars had shifted to the west and north - - away from Fort
Kearny. Equally important, in 1866 the Union Pacific Railroad, constructed
along the north bank of the Platte River, was extended to a point farther
west than Fort Kearny, leaving the fort stranded on the south bank of the
Platte and along a trail no longer traveled. Not long after Fort Kearny was
abandoned in 1871, all above-ground building remains disappeared. Although
the federal government salvaged many building materials for re-use elsewhere,
many buildings soon rotted away through neglect.
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